
       PRELIMINARY MINUTES 
 

VILLAGE OF LUDLOW 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2023 

 

6:00 PM  
 

HOWARD BARTON, JR. CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

 

TRUSTEES PRESENT:   

David Rose, Chairman Earl Washburn Bob Brandt   

 

STAFF:   

Scott Murphy  Ron Tarbell 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: 

Scott Baitz Andrea Goldman Jean Strong 

Jake Baraw  Patty Greenwood  

David Del Tufo Meredith Milliken  

 

 

1. Call To Order 

 

A. David Rose called the regular meeting of the Village Trustees to order at 6:00 p.m.  

 

2. Consideration of any Changes, Additions or Removal to the Agenda 

 

A. Scott said suggested that they add Entertainment Ordinance under Other Business and move 

Access Road Storm Water Project to Future Sidewalk Project. 

B. Board agreed to above changes in Agenda. 
 

 

3. Approve Minutes from Previous Meetings 

 

A. MOTION by Earl Washburn and seconded by David Rose to approve minutes from the 

regular meeting of January 3, 2023, as amended.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

4. Comments from Citizens 

 

A. Andrea Goldman asked to make 2 comments 

i. She asked if the Trustees’ meetings be on ZOOM such as the Select Board meeting are 

ii. Noise Ordinance – she said that they have suffered from not having a noise ordinance and 

asked the Trustees to consider this. 

B. Patty Greenwood said that the sidewalks on Main Street and the crosswalks are difficult, 

notably by Shaw’s, Shell and Mojos.  She asked that these be addressed. 

C. David Rose said maybe they could be painted twice a year – spring and fall. 

D. Ron Tarbell said when Main Street is paved; he will press the state on the crosswalks.  We can’t 

do the work in-house. 



Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  February 7, 2023 

Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 2 of 5 

 

 
 

 

5. Sewer Allocation Request  

 

A. 12 Pine Hill Road (Okemo Pines).  – Parker Reid 

i. Scott Murphy advised that this is an application to increase allocation for 3 bedrooms to 4 

bedrooms. (This is for the future construction of a house.  A hook-up fee of $4,500.00 would 

be required at the time of connection.)  Allocation fee due - $780.00 

ii. MOTION by Bob Brandt and seconded by Earl Washburn to approve the request from 

Parker Reid to add allocation for one additional bedroom at $780.00.  Motion passed 

unanimously.  

 
 

6. Review and Possibly Approve FY2024 Budget and Sign Annual Meeting Warning 

 

A. Scott Murphy said that based on our conversations last Tuesday, we can’t sign the warrant until 

February 17th and it must be signed by February 27th.  They can come in to sign it.  The only 

changes in the budget since their last meeting were adding funding for the Wastewater assets 

depreciation. 

B.  David Rose said that the accountants suggested that.  He said the projected increase is 3.89%.  

The amount to be raised in taxes is $359,493.50.  He said the amount to be raised in taxes for 

the Wastewater is $70,907.00 and includes the wastewater fees and depreciation.  He said that 

funds have been built in for an additional person at the wastewater plant. 

C. Bob Brandt noted that Unemployment rate increased quite a bit. 

D. Scott Murphy said we had a few claims, some long term.  It’s a 3-year average. 

E. MOTION by Earl Washburn and seconded by Bob Brandt to approve the Village and 

Wastewater Budgets for FY2024.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

7. RHR Smith Auditor John Boulay to Review FY2022 Village Audit 

 

A. Scott Murphy said that the auditor has not supplied us with the Village audit, yet.  He was going 

to come in last night, but had car trouble. 

B. David Rose asked when we need it by. 

C. Scott Murphy said within 2 weeks. 

D. David Rose asked when the auditors’ contract is up. 

E. Scott Murphy said one more year. 

 

 

8. Future Sidewalk Projects 

 

A. Scott Murphy said that they had a sidewalk inventory done in conjunction with Regional 

Planning Commission, with conditions listed as Poor/Fair and Good.  The top priorities are 

Main Street by the Shell Station, and Pleasant Street at Depot (21 Main on the south side.)  He 

said that #5 is Pleasant Street, #’s 21 through 41 and #’s 6/7 – Pond Street. 

B. Bob Brandt asked the price for paving. 

C. Ron Tarbell said he doesn’t know.  He said Shell would have to be shut off at the entrance.  He 

hopes to include that in the Main Street paving project. 



Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  February 7, 2023 

Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 3 of 5 

 

 
D. Jean Strong suggested making it part of their permit to designate a sidewalk.  It could be the 

same with Dunkin’ Donuts- there is no sidewalk there.  She said there is no room.  She 

suggested removing some parking spaces as it is a critical space. 

E. Scott Murphy said that he contacted the State and there will be a kick-off meeting this month 

with paving slated for spring 2025. 

F. David Rose asked funds available for sidewalks this year. 

G. Scott Murphy said about $230,000.  He said they have 2 estimates for the Mountain Road 

drainage project. 

H. Ron Tarbell said the costs listed are very rough estimates. 

I. David Rose said that would be from the bottom to the trestle. 

J. Ron Tarbell said one option is to put in new storm drains along the right side of the road and to 

abandon the existing cross culverts with flow-able fill.  The other option is to just replace the 

existing rusted out 3 cross culverts. 

K. David Rose asked if we can close the road during construction. 

L. Ron Tarbell said we could do ½ and ½. 

M. David Rose said it would be either $80,000 or $100,000. 

N. Ron Tarbell said he suggested replacing the cross culverts. 

O. David Rose asked if they could sleeve the old culverts with PVC. 

P. Ron Tarbell said they are too small and too far gone. 

Q. Bob Brandt asked about flow-able fill. 

R. Ron Tarbell said it’s put in the old abandoned culverts so they don’t collapse and then we just 

do away with them. 

S. Earl Washburn asked about Gleascott to Commonwealth. 

T. Scott Murphy said in the spring.  They have the curbing ordered. 

U. David Rose said go with the lesser cost for the drainage project. 

V. Scott Murphy said if we incorporate the ARPA funds and go out for bid, we can ask for both 

options. 

W. Ron Tarbell said we need to look at them in the spring. 

X. David Rose suggested doing the bids in the spring and hopefully the combined projects will be 

big enough that we get bids. 

Y. Jean Strong said that she doesn’t see Dunkin’ Donuts on the priority list. 

Z. Ron Tarbell said that is because the sidewalk is non-existent. 

AA. Jean Strong asked if we can do something. 

BB. Earl Washburn said we may be limited – there is no room.  There may be a gas line.  We can 

paint lines. 

CC. Jean Strong asked if we can make room for sidewalks. 

DD. Patty Greenwood said that space is a hazard.  We could take 2 parking spaces to make it safer.  

She said cars whip in and out of Dunkin’ Donuts and the sight is limited. Do we need a permit 

to make a sidewalk? 

EE. David Rose asked Scott Murphy and Ron Tarbell to look into it. 

FF. Scott Murphy said there may be some permit issues.  He will bring back options at the next 

meeting. 

GG. David Rose said he would like the RFP to go out in the spring and see how much we can do. 

HH. Scott Murphy said he will try to get it out a little before the spring. 

  

 

9. The Trustees to Certify the Village Highway Mileage for VTRANS. 

 

A. David Rose said this is done annually. 



Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  February 7, 2023 

Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 4 of 5 

 

 
B. Scott Murphy said we have 2.295 miles of Class 1, 2.54 miles of Class 2 and 4.83 miles Class 3 

roads. 

C. MOTION by Bob Brandt and seconded by Earl Washburn to certify and sign the Village 

Highway Mileage for VTRANS.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

10. The Trustees to Possibly Approve a Coin Drop on April 22, 2023 by the American Legion. 

 

A. David Rose said the Legion does this every year and it is a worthy cause. 

B. MOTION by Earl Washburn and seconded by Bob Brandt to approve the American 

Legion coin drop for April 22, 2023.  Motion passed unanimously. 

11.     Other Business 

 

A. Vail Bridge Sewer Line 

i. Scott Murphy said they are trying to keep the project moving.  It is the main water flow off 

the mountain.  The survey was done and they chose Option #4 and will use the largest 

stone.  The state will issue a permit, but want us to use type E3 stone.  Also map. 

ii. David Rose asked about Wayne Elliott, and an additional drawing. 

iii. Scott Murphy said he may already have it.  We are looking toward May 15 to October 1, 

2023. 

iv. David Rose asked about the RFP. 

 
B. Access Road Stormwater Project 

i. Addressed under Sidewalks 

 
C. Entertainment Ordinance 

i. Scott Murphy said that at their meeting last night, the Select Board discussed the liquor 

license renewal for Eight OhBrew and complaints about noise.  They don’t have a good 

noise ordinance and they have an Entertainment Ordinance.  The village has neither. He 

asked the board if they want him to draft an Entertainment Ordinance for their next 

meeting.  There have been lots of complaints.  The owners are willing to work with us. 

ii. Jake Baraw (owner) said they have a working group at the Mill and are looking into sound 

proofing. 

iii. David Rose asked what the procedure is now, without an ordinance. 

iv. Scott Murphy said the police try to calm the noise.  There is no ordinance to address 

decibels and they have no “teeth”. 

v. Scott Murphy said there is a statewide level for 10:00 p.m. for disturbances.  He said the 

state issues the license and we can attach conditions. 

vi. Scott Murphy said if there are complaints, the ordinance has to be specific. 

vii. Bob Brandt said we should go forward with an ordinance – to coincide with the towns. 

viii. Earl Washburn agreed.  We need to be compatible with the town. 

ix. Scott Murphy said he will update the language in the town’s ordinance and make one 

applicable to the village. He said that Chief Billings has spoken to the owners and their 

current liquor license is in effect until April. 

 
D. Bowker Court 

i. David Rose asked for an update. 

ii. Scott Murphy said no change and no court date has been set. 

 

 



Village of Ludlow – Board of Trustees  February 7, 2023 

Preliminary Meetings Minutes  Page 5 of 5 

 

 
12. Municipal Manager Updates 

 

A. Wastewater COVID Tracking System 

i. David Rose asked how this is going 

ii. Scott Murphy said we take weekly readings and saw spikes over MLK Weekend and 

Presidents’ Week, and then it lowered.   

iii. David Rose said they are taking readings of COVID in the wastewater.  

iv. Scott Murphy said it also helps with new variants. 

 

 

13. Set Date for Next Meeting and Possible Agenda Items 

 

A. Scott Murphy said they will have to have a Special Meeting to sign the warning for Village 

Meeting between February 17th and 27th. 

B. Earl Washburn said he will be away from Feb. 17th through Feb. 22nd. 

C. Meeting set for 8:00 a.m. on Friday, February 24, 2023. 

D. Next regular meeting March 7, 2023. 

  

14. Sign Warrant Orders 

 

A. Warrant orders have been signed.  

 

 

15. Possible Executive Session/Personnel/Contracts/Legal Issues 

 

A. Scott Murphy said that an Executive Session is not needed 

 

 

16. Adjourn 

 

A. MOTION to adjourn by Earl Washburn and seconded by Bob Brandt.   Motion passed 

unanimously. 

B. Meeting adjourned at 6:41 p.m.   

   

           

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Lisha Klaiber 

 

             

             

David Rose, Chairman of Trustees   Earl Washburn, Vice Chair 

 

 

        

Bob Brandt, Clerk 


